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BOARD MEETING 
December 6, 2018 

HUNTINGTON HEALTH CENTER 
5:30 PM 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of the November 1, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

 
3. Finance Committee Report 

 
4. Committee Reports (as needed)  

• Executive Committee 
• Quality Improvement 
• Fundraising  
• Personnel  
• Facilities 
• Recruiting, Orientation, and Nominating (RON) 
• Strategic Planning  
• Corporate Compliance  

 
5. Chief Executive Officer / Senior Manager Reports 

   
6.    Old Business 
 
7.    New Business 

• Financial Policies and Procedures 
• Human Resources Policies 
• Public Charge Comments 

 
8.    Adjourn 

 
 

http://www.hchcweb.org/


HCHC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Date/Time: 11/01/2018 5:30pm 
Worthington Health Center 
 
 
MEMBERS: John Follet, President; Nancy Brenner, Vice President; Tim Walter, Treasurer.; Alan Gaitenby; Kathryn 
Jensen, Clerk; Lee Manchester; Seth Gemme; Matt Bannister; Wendy Long; 
STAFF: Eliza Lake, CEO; Michael Purdy, Chief Clinical and Community Services Officer; Frank Mertes, CFO 
ABSENT: Maya Bachman 
  
Agenda Item Summary of Discussion Decisions/ 

Next Steps/ 
Person 

Responsible 
Due Date 

Minutes of 
10/04/2018 

 
 

 

John Follet called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm. 
                          
The minutes from the meeting of October 4, 2018 were reviewed. Tim Walter 
moved acceptance, Nancy Brenner seconded. 

October 4, 
2018 
minutes 
were 
approved 
unanimously 
 

 Finance 
Committee 

Tim Walter reported on the Finance Committee’s meeting. HCHC was successful 
at procuring a cash advance from MassHealth for $300K. This has alleviated the 
crisis in cash flow, though cash on hand remains low at $11,700. The zero-
interest loan will be repaid via automatic deductions from MassHealth payments 
beginning in April 2019. 
 
Frank Mertes added that the newly available funds were used to renew the 
Center’s line of credit and to pay pending bills. The month of October ended as 
cash-neutral. 
 
A significant, though not the only, source of the current shortfall is the 
underutilization of the new Amherst site. Eliza Lake reported doing a great deal 
of community outreach, but predicted progress would be slow. It was recently 
learned that Amherst’s public transportation system, the PVTA, has been 
experiencing a dearth of bus drivers, such that public transportation has become 
spotty and unreliable. This is another issue potentially affecting patient 
utilization at the Musante Center.  
 
The low volume in Amherst has prompted plans to explore the temporary 
transfer some providers to the Huntington and/or Worthington site for a limited 
time each week/month. Not every provider is able to do this, but several are 
considering it. HCHC has hired an additional staff member in Behavioral Health 
who is bilingual (Spanish/English), and who can be a useful addition to the 
Musante Center when it picks up volume and an office can be found for her. 
 

The Finance 
Committee 
Report was 
approved 
unanimously 
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Alan Gaitenby moved that the report of the Finance Committee be accepted. 
Wendy Long seconded the motion. 

Executive 
Committee 

John Follet reported that the minutes from the Executive Committee of last 
month are not yet available. 

 

Recruitment, 
Orientation 

& 
Nominating 

(RON) 
Committee 

 

Tim Walter reported that this committee has not met in the past month and that 
there has been no action. 

 

Corporate 
Compliance 
Committee 

Eliza Lake reported that there was a mandatory All Staff meeting at the end of 
October, at which she provided a training on Corporate Compliance.  Topics 
included the seven areas of the Corporate Compliance plan, and focused very 
specifically on whistleblower protections, non-retaliation, and employees’ 
responsibility to report infractions of policies, rules, and regulations.   

 

Facilities 
Committee 

Alan Gaitenby reported that a plan is underway to make repairs on the exterior 
stairway that serves as a fire escape in Huntington. Eliza Lake reported that 
there have been problems with the septic system at the Worthington building, 
and that HCHC may need to have the system pumped more frequently than it 
has been. She also reported that some stair tread protectors at the Huntington 
site have worn down and the maintenance department is looking into 
replacements that are both economical and aesthetically pleasing. 

 

Personnel 
Committee 

John Follet reported that this committee has not met.  
 

Quality 
Improvemen

t/Risk 
Management 

Committee 

Kathryn Jensen reported low attendance at last month’s QI committee, but that 
there was useful discussion of a pattern of incidents. There was also a review of 
the available Patient Satisfaction Survey data. The minutes for the September 
meeting have been voted on, but were left out of the packet of Board materials 
and will be presented next month. 

 

Strategic 
Planning 

Committee 

Eliza Lake reported that, as a member of the Board of our ACO, C3, she has been 
on the committee developing strategic plan for, which will be ready in the next 
month. She wants to then review the HCHC strategic plan and reconcile the two. 

 

Credentialing
/Privileging 
Committee 

John Follet reported that this committee has reviewed materials for two new 
employees. 

 

Committee 
Reports 

Tim Walter moved the committee reports be accepted. Matt Bannister 
seconded the motion. 

Committee 
reports were 
approved 
unanimously 

CEO Report Eliza presented a three-point plan for improving the HCHC financial situation: 
1. Increase the number of patient visits 
2. Increase operational efficiencies 
3. Begin fundraising 
 
Actions have already been taken in all three areas. There is a host of measures 
being undertaken to get existing patients in for appointments. The Director of 
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Clinical Operations has been working on increasing efficiencies, clarifying which 
staff members are responsible for which duties. A meeting of Board Members 
interested in fundraising took place just prior to the present meeting.  A number 
of ideas were generated, including emphasizing that HCHC is a non-profit, 
holding various types of events, and approaching large donors. (Note: this 
committee will henceforth be discussed under Old Business.) Eliza’s meetings 
with the staff have yielded some suggestions around saving money, and she has 
been impressed at the commitment of the staff.  The Mass League is willing to 
help HCHC with exploring options for addressing the financial situation, initially 
suggesting a consultant review our financial books. The management of HCHC 
would prefer, however, to have a consultant advise on operational 
improvements, and this may come to pass. 
 
Eliza announced that HCHC’s submission on LGBTQ issues was preliminarily 
rated 90 points out of 100.  
 
Eliza announced that she ran as Western Mass Representative for the Board of 
the Mass League and won. She wants to use the experience to increase her 
learning of the political issues, and to ensure that the needs of Western Mass 
are represented in the Board conversations. 
 
C3 is now getting real numbers in terms of the total cost of care for HCHC’s 
patients, but these numbers will only be getting clearer, the more time passes. 
HCHC has all along expected that the federal DSRIP funds funneled through C3 
will decrease over time, and this expectation is being borne out by the numbers 
– the 2019 allocation will be less than we received in 2018. 
 
Recent Mass League meeting showcased comparisons among states, with 
Massachusetts numbers significantly worse than most other states. One reason 
for this is that Medicaid (i.e., MassHealth) rates are low in this state.  
 
In its assessment of ways to increase operational efficiencies, Senior 
Management has determined that reducing the hours of operation at the 
Huntington center by one hour would enable staff to consolidate their hours, 
and would not adversely affect patient access.  They therefore propose closing 
the Huntington Health Center at 6 pm instead of 7 pm one weekday evening. 
This change would take place gradually over the last months of the present 
calendar year, so as to not affect patients with existing appointments. 
 
Tim Walter moved that the board approve the above change in hours of 
operation. The motion was seconded by Nancy Brenner and approved by those 
present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Board 
unanimously 
approved the 
change in 
hours. 

Old Business Massachusetts ballot question 4 directs the local state representative to support 
a single payer form of health insurance through the elimination of private 
insurance and the creation of a state trust fund. A motion was made via email by 
Wendy Long that HCHC take an affirmative position on this ballot question.  The 
motion had been seconded by Tim Walter.  
 

The Board 
voted to 

reject the 
motion. 
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The matter was discussed by the Board at length, with Eliza pointing out that the 
complexity and impact on HCHC of a sweeping change in health insurance 
cannot be quantified or understood without more detail. 

New 
Business 

  

Credentialing
/Privileging 

John Follet, on behalf of the Credentialing and Privileging Committee, 
recommended that new employees Jenida Maldanado, Dental Assistant, and 
Chaneyra Rivera, Medical Assistant, be approved for Credentialing. 
 
Tim Walter moved that the above employees be credentialed. Alan Gaitenby 
seconded the motion. 

Jenida 
Maldanado 
(DA) and 
Cheryra 
Rivera (MA) 
were 
unanimously 
approved for 
Credentials 

Next Meeting Matthew Bannister moved the meeting be adjourned. Tim Walter seconded the 
motion 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:35 pm. 
 
The next scheduled meeting will be on December 6, 2018 in Huntington. 

The motion 
to adjourn 
was 
approved 
unanimously 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kathryn L. Jensen 
Clerk 
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Executive Committee 
HCHC 
10/4/18 
 
Attending:  John Follett, Eliza Lake, Frank Mertes, Kathryn Jensen, Michael Purdy, Tim Walter, 
Nancy Brenner 
 
Topic: Concern about dire financial situation and steps to take 
 
Frank and Eliza detailed cash flow problems, and context leading to this situation.   There is only 
$25,000 remaining in cash after the last payroll, and investment funds are being spent down, with 
$250,000 will remain after some bills are paid.  All taxes have been paid and our Federal grant 
has been drawn down in 1/12 increments. It is felt we need $300,000 immediately. 
 
Eliza and Frank called the Mass League earlier in the day and received support and a number of 
specific recommendations, including speaking to MassHealth regarding possible cash advance 
on 10/5/18, and possible  conversation with Partners/Cooley Dickinson.  Eliza also met with 
Steve Kulik regarding a possible Supplemental Budget earmark and the Health Center Transfor-
mation Fund, which will likely be filed in legislation in January. 
 
Immediate and longer-term options were discussed.  This will be discussed with entire Board at 
meeting following this, and Eliza will communicate with all staff regarding the situation.  The 
Executive Committee will meet again, as needed. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Nancy Brenner 
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Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. 

 

Finance Department 

 

 

SUBJECT: NAME OF POLICY – FINANCIAL POLICY 

REGULATORY REFERENCE:  Code of Federal Regulations 45 (CFR) Part 75 and 

PIN 2013-01 

 

Purpose:  
The Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. (HCHC) is a Health Center Program authorized 

under section 330 of the Public Health Service (PHS) Act 42 U.S.C. 254b) (“section 330”) and is 

required to maintain accounting and internal control systems appropriate to the size and 

complexity of the organization reflecting Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 

and separate functions appropriate to organizational size to safeguard assets and maintain 

financial stability. As such the Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. (HCHC) management 

has adopted this policy to have a formal documented process to meet these requirements and   

establish guidelines for developing financial and accounting procedures necessary to safeguard 

the financial resources of HCHC.  
 

Policy: 
HCHC will maintain and update as necessary a Financial Procedure Manual that contains 

procedures for the following topics: 

 Maintenance of Account Records and Record Retention 

 Cash Disbursements and Receipts 

 Cost Allocation 

 Purchasing and Reimbursement Procedures 

 Reporting 

 Payroll 

 Fixed Asset Accounting 

 Patient Revenue and Receivables 

 

Questions should be directed to the Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer at 413-238-

5511. 
 

Originally Drafted: MARCH 2004 Reviewed or Revised: DEC. 2018 

                                                                                                                and retroactive to JAN.1, 2018 

 
Approved by Board of Directors,                                          Date: September 27, 2017  
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 Approved by: 

 

Eliza Lake_                              Date:  December 6, 2018 

Eliza B. Lake 

Chief Executive Officer, HCHC 

 

John Follet, MD                                       Date:  December 6, 2018  

John Follet, MD 

President, HCHC Board of Directors 
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Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. 

(HCHC) 
 

 
 

FINANCIAL  
PROCEDURES 

MANUAL 
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HILLTOWN COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC.  
 

is a not-for-profit healthcare facility providing medical, dental, behavioral health and 
related services at Worthington Health Center, Worthington, MA; Huntington Health 

Center, Huntington, MA; J.P. Musante Health Center, Amherst, MA and a School-Based 
Health Center located within Gateway Regional High School, Huntington, MA. 

 
 

Mission 

Creating access to high quality integrated health care and promoting well-being for 
individuals, families and our communities. 

Vision 

Communities Engaged for Health 

Values 

We listen, consider and care. We respect the individual strengths and diverse 
experiences of the people we serve and all of our employees. 

We commit to working together. We provide integrated care through teamwork and 
collaboration. 

We hold ourselves accountable. We work to the best of our abilities and commit to 
open communication. 

We encourage curiosity and growth. We strive to continually improve through 
innovation and the use of best practices. 

We focus on our future. We ensure financial sustainability through efficient practices 
and management. 
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Purpose of the Corporation 
 

To provide, encourage and administer facilities for health care access for all the 
inhabitants of the surrounding communities as are deemed necessary, feasible and 
affordable. 
 
To participate in the coordination of community and area health projects and activities 
including cooperation with, and the providing of appropriate space for,  
healthcare services. 
 
To be ready, and to act, at all times to conserve and promote the health of the 
population in the communities, regardless of ability to pay. 
 
To sponsor charitable, scientific, and educational endeavors directed toward the 
promotion of any project designed to improve the health of the community. 
 
To engage in any other activity, endeavor, or course of action  
not inconsistent with the above. 
 
 
Financial Management 
 
HCHC’s financial management systems, including records documenting compliance 
with Federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
and state awards, must be sufficient to permit the preparation of reports required by 
general and program-specific terms and conditions; and the tracing of funds to a level of 
expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have been used according to the 
Federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
award.  (See Appendix A Organizational Chart) 
 
HCHC must; 

a) Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal and state award 
that provides reasonable assurance that HCHC is managing the Federal and 
state award in compliance with Federal and state statutes, regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of the Federal award. These internal controls should be in 
compliance with guidance in “Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 
Government,” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the 
“Internal Control Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 

b) Comply with Federal and State statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the awards. 

c) Evaluate and monitor the compliance with statutes, regulations and the terms 
and conditions of awards. 

d) Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings. 
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e) Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable 
information and other information the awarding agency or pass-through entity 
designates as sensitive or what HCHC considers sensitive consistent with 
applicable Federal and state laws regarding privacy and obligations of 
confidentiality. 
 
 

Chart of Accounts 
  
The chart of accounts is designed to provide management with an analysis of financial 
position and a statement of operating revenues and expenses on a time accrual basis.  
The chart of accounts is established using the total grant concept.  As such, each 
individual funding source is segregated in the general ledger to allow management to 
easily distinguish revenues and expenses by funding source.  This allows for easier 
preparation of monthly reimbursement vouchers for contracts as well as regulatory 
reporting (FSR, UFR, UDS, etc.) 
 
All financial transactions are designated by an account code.  The digits employed are 
selected from the chart of accounts. 
 
Definition of Coding Structure (Refer to Appendix B) 
 
Each account code is subdivided into four separate segments.  
 
Consisting of: 
 

1. Fund   XX 
2. Account  XXXXX 
3. Location  XX 
4. Department  XX 

 
 

1. Fund - 01  Used for all transactions 
 

2. Account - The digits represent the major account classifications for balance 
sheet, revenue, and expense items.  For example: XXXXX 
 

a. Assets     = 1XXXX 
b. Liabilities      = 2 
c. Net Assets     = 3 
d. Revenue / Income    = 3 
e. Salaries and Benefits   = 5 
f. Expenses     = 6 
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3. Location – XX   Used to identify location. 
 

4. Department – XX Used to identify each department. 
 
 
 
Subaccount Segment 
 

1. Alphanumeric codes that identify grants 
2. UFR codes that correspond with UFR coding – if required 
3. Raiser’s Edge code – if required 

 
 
 
Description of Accounts 
 
Assets 
 
All asset accounts are designated within the chart of accounts by the appropriate digit of 
the account-numbering scheme.  
 
Cash Accounts are debited for bank deposits and when stop payments are placed on 
previously issued checks.  These accounts are credited for funds withdrawn and any 
miscellaneous bank charges. Cash receipts are deposited into the operating account on 
a regular basis in accordance with the cash receipts policies. Insurance & patient 
payments are debited to cash on hand when received and then recorded to the General 
Operating Account when deposited in the bank. 
 
A petty cash fund is established at each site.  Reimbursements for expenses paid from 
petty cash are made from the operating account.  Expenses are charged to the 
appropriate account at the time of reimbursement. Change Funds are set up for making 
change for patient cash payments, amounts are set and adjusted as needed. 
 
Accounts Receivable accounts are debited for grant funds due, revenue billed, and any 
other amounts owed to the health center.  Accounts receivable are credited for cash 
collected and any un-collectible amounts.  A debit balance represents the balance owed 
to the health center. 
 
Allowance for doubtful accounts is a reserve for estimated un-collectible patient 
receivables contained in the accounts receivable balance.  The purpose of the 
allowance is to provide the estimated un-collectible amount of recorded receivables.  
The reserve is established based on the historical bad debt experience, current 
economic conditions, estimates and presumptions. The allowance is reviewed for 
revision periodically. 
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Prepaid expenses are debited for significant current cash outlays that are related to 
future periods.   
 
Fixed Assets - The health center has established a capitalization amount for fixed 
assets of $5,000 or more. 
 
Accumulated depreciation accounts are credited monthly for estimated depreciation on 
assets and debited to operating expenses. Accounts are reconciled at yearend to actual 
amounts, per the annual audit 
 
Other assets include accounts designated for investments or cash set aside for stability 
or future capital projects. 
 
 
 
Liabilities  
 
Accounts Payable 
 
Accounts payable are credited for the amounts owed vendors for receipt of goods and 
services.  An entry is made to an accounts payable register for vendors’ invoices 
received and approved for payment regardless of which program incurred the expense.  
Accounts payable are debited for cash disbursements against established payables.  
The balance (credit) reflects outstanding vendor liabilities.   
 
Accrued liabilities are established for payroll costs, amounts withheld from employees, 
and other accrued liabilities.  These accounts are credited for amounts due and debited 
upon payment or settlement.  The balance (credit) represents the amount owed.  At the 
close of each month, the estimated accrued payroll expenses incurred in the current 
month are booked in the general ledger as an accrued expense. All expenses are 
accrued at yearend. 
 
Loans/Mortgages payable 
 
Amounts borrowed for operating or capital purchases or improvements. These accounts 
are credited monthly as balances are paid or debited when new funds are borrowed. 
 
Capital Leases 
 
Amounts are credited to these accounts if major leases are entered into that require 
financing. The accounts are debited monthly as principal payments are made on these 
leases to reduce the amount owed. 
 
Deferred Revenue Accounts 
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These accounts are credited when grants and other forms of payment are received by 
the health center for future services, equipment purchases, or capital projects. These 
amounts are debited as the services are provided or per current accounting regulations 
during the annual audit. 
 
 
Net Assets 
 
YTD Net Income 
 
These accounts accumulate the estimated net profit of each cost center on a monthly 
basis. After final adjustment at the completion of the annual audit, each balance is 
closed to the appropriate Fund Balance account. These accounts are zeroed out at the 
end of each fiscal year. 
 
 
Net Assets 
 
These are accounts that designate the net worth of the health center. Fund balance 
accounts are adjusted annually at the conclusion of the annual audit. Any net profit or 
loss is recorded to the appropriate fund balance at the conclusion of the annual audit. 
 
Net Assets without and with Donor Restrictions 
 
Beginning in 2018, net assets without donor restrictions is one of two classifications of 
net assets reported on the financial statements of a not-for-profit organization's financial 
statements. This classification replaces the previous classification unrestricted net 
assets. 
 
Beginning in 2018, net assets with donor restrictions is second of two classifications of 
net assets reported on the financial statements of a not-for-profit organization's financial 
statements. This classification is to be used instead of the following two 
classifications: temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 
 
Revenues 
 
Revenues are credited to revenue accounts as they are considered earned and 
receivable. These can be revenues for services provided to patients or related to grant 
conditions.   
 
Contra-Revenues 
 
These are accounts which are credited to adjust for patient amounts billed, but not 
considered collectible. These include, but are not limited to insurance allowances, free 
care, bad debt and billing errors. 
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Expenses 
 
Expense accounts are debited for paid or accrued expenditures.  Types of expenses 
include but are not limited to: 
 

Salaries/Wages – These costs are recorded to accrued liabilities and distributed 
to individual departments based on the gross salaries/wages recorded on the 
payroll allocation worksheet. The payroll timesheet has been established to 
account for the time and effort of each individual employee.  Thus, the general 
ledger accounts properly reflect the amount paid to employees based on 
departmental and funding source time and effort recorded on timesheets. 
 
Payroll Taxes – These are mandatory payments related to payroll which normally 
include FICA, Medicare, Workman’s Compensation Insurance and State 
Unemployment Insurance. Applicable costs are distributed to programs and 
departments in proportion to monthly salary distributions.   
 
Fringe Benefits – Included in this account are medical, dental, disability and 
group life insurance; and any other employee benefits which may be offered by 
the health center.  A description of current benefits may be found in the 
employee handbook.  Applicable costs are distributed to programs and 
departments in proportion to monthly salary distributions.   
 
Consultants and Contractual – These costs include dental labs & those 
individuals to whom the health center issues 1099 statements at year-end.  
Examples include auditing firms, legal firms, payroll service, computer 
consultants, skilled labor, and independent health-care providers.     
 
Facilities Costs – Costs associated with the occupancy of the health center's 
buildings are included in these line items.    
 
Utilities – These expenses include electricity, heating and cooling fuel, water 
supply and related expenses. 
 
Repairs and Maintenance – Costs associated with the upkeep of the property 
and equipment are recorded in these accounts.  
 
Mortgage Interest – Interest costs associated with mortgage loans related to 
health center buildings and improvements. 
 
Depreciation – The estimated depreciation related to the health center's fixed 
assets are recorded monthly in these accounts that are broken out by type of 
asset (buildings, building improvements, furniture and equipment, etc). 
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Building & General Liability – These accounts include any type of insurance 
related to the buildings, their contents and general liability related to agency 
facilities or use. 
 
Program Supplies – Program supplies are supplies needed for providing medical, 
dental or other program services and are recorded separately from general office 
supplies or facility supplies.  
 
Telephone – Includes regular monthly telephone costs, beepers, answering 
service, internet costs and other related communication expenses. 
 
Dues and Memberships – These se expenses include all membership dues paid 
to organizations for the health center or any employee of the health center. 
 
Subscriptions & Journals – All subscriptions to magazines and professional 
journals. 
 
Licenses and Fees – These expenses include all individual provider and agency 
licenses required by state and federal agencies for which the health center pays. 
 
Travel – These costs include all expenses related to employee travel for health 
center business or necessary to the functioning of the health center operations. 
They include staff mileage at current approved rate, parking, tolls, motels, some 
meals and other related travel expenses.   
 
Printing – Costs associated with production of letterhead, newsletters, invoices, 
patient receivable statements, forms, business cards and envelopes are 
recorded to these accounts.   
 
Postage & Shipping – Amounts incurred to mail business correspondence or to 
ship items as required for operation of the health center. 
 
Staff Recruitment/Training - All costs associated with the recruitment and/or 
training of staff are recorded to these accounts.  This may include workshops, 
skill trainings and other mandatory trainings required for licensure or other 
purposes. 
 
Interest - Interest costs for general operating use, such as for a line of credit are 
charged to this line item. It does not include any interest for building purchases or 
improvements.  
 
Professional Insurance – This account includes professional liability insurance 
related to services provided by the health center and its employees as well as 
Director’s & Officer’s insurance.  
 



 

January 2018  13 

Bad Debt - All costs associated with the write off of those patient receivable 
accounts deemed not collectible are included in this account. Bad Debt is 
recorded as a Contra-Revenue Account on the general ledger and then adjusted 
to an expense account on the annual audit. 

 
Expenses are charged to the program and funding source benefiting from the goods or 
services.  If a specific department cannot be identified, the expense is charged to the 
Administration, Billing, Facility or other appropriate allocation pool. If all programs and 
funding sources are likely to derive benefit from the goods or services, the expense is 
charged to the appropriate overhead department.  See cost principles as outlined in 45 
CFR 75 subpart E for further cost definitions and information on allowable and 
unallowable costs associated with Federal awards. 
 
Maintenance of Accounting Records 
 
 
The health center maintains the following accounting records: 

a) Accounts Payable Register 
b) Cash Receipts Journal 
c) Payroll Register 
d) General Ledger and General Journal Entries 

 
Below is a description of each of these records and a brief summary explaining the 
procedures for how the entries are recorded. 
 
Accounts Payable Register 
 
All cash disbursements are initially entered in the accounts payable system upon receipt 
of the vendor invoice.  The expenditures are charged to the appropriate expense or 
asset accounts.  Invoices are batched for data entry.  A batch report is generated for 
each group of invoices entered.  The individual batch reports are retained until a 
summary batch report is generated at month’s end.   
 
Cash Receipts Journal 
 
Front desk patient receipts (co-pays, deductibles and self-pays) are batched and posted 
to the cash receipts data entry journal from daily summaries prepared by front desk 
personnel at the end of each business day.  The medical and dental departments 
submit separate summaries.   
 
Third-party payments received in the mail are batched and posted to a cash receipts 
data entry journal from summaries prepared by the Billing Department.   
 
Other receivables (grant funds, enhanced revenue payments, cobra payments, etc) are 
batched and posted to a cash receipts data entry journal from summaries prepared by 
the Accounting Department.  (See Cash Receipts section for description of procedures.) 
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By the end of each month all entries are posted to the general ledger.  The cash 
account is debited for the total of the monthly receipts.  
 
Payroll Register 
 
The payroll register is obtained from the payroll processing company, currently 
Checkwriters.  The monthly payroll entries are obtained from the data in the payroll 
register. A spreadsheet is prepared monthly using the payroll register and the 
allocations recorded on time sheets by each employee. This spread sheet allocates 
amounts paid to employees to the program and site in which they worked. The 
summarized totals for each program and site are recorded to the general ledger from 
these reports.  
General Ledger and General Journal Entries 
 
Entries to the general ledger are posted monthly.  The general ledger is printed monthly 
and filed for future reference.   
 
Some journal entries consist of those that are recurring in nature.  Entries are recorded 
first in a data entry file.  Entries are batched according to type.  Each data entry batch is 
automatically assigned a unique number by the computerized accounting system. 
 
Correcting and/or adjusting entries are also posted monthly.  Entries are recorded first 
on a data entry file.  Entries are batched according to type.  Each data entry batch is 
automatically assigned a unique number by the computerized accounting system. 
 
Record Retention 
 
Computerized/Electronic Records: 
 
General Ledger / Financial records are maintained on Financial Edge which is a cloud-
based software under a subscription service that also provides sophisticated security 
protocols, disaster recovery procedures and 24 hour system availability.   
 
Non-computerized Records: 
 

Accounting Records 
 

 Bank statements and deposit slips = 7 
 Expense reports = 7 
 Subsidiary ledger (A/P & A/R) = 7 
 Checks (payroll and general) = 7 
 Payroll - reports, earnings records = 8 
 Vouchers (vendors) = 7 
 Mortgages, notes, leases (expired) = 8 
 Tax returns and working papers = Permanent 
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 External Audit reports = Permanent 
 

Corporate Records: 
 

 Bylaws, charters, operating certificates, minutes, stock & bond records, 
checks (for taxes, property, important contracts, agreements, copyright & 
trademark registrations, deeds, labor agreements, patents, proxies, pension 
records = As laws require. 

 
 Correspondence 

o General = 2 
o Legal & tax = Permanent or as required. 

 
 Insurance 

o Expired policies = 3 
o Accident and fire inspection reports = 6 
o Group disability records, safety reports = 8 
o Claims (after settlement) = 10 

 
 Personnel: 

o Expired contracts = 7 
o Timesheets = 7 
o Disability & sick benefits records, terminated personnel files = 7 
o Withholding tax statements = 7 

 
Further, the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 requires all entities that 
receive federal funds to retain all documents associated with the funds for a minimum of 
three years.  Similarly, because the health center receives funding from Medicare and 
Medicaid, these documents must be retained for a minimum of three years after the 
date of final settlement on that year's cost report.  As a rule, the documents associated 
with Medicare and Medicaid should be retained for at least 5 years.  This allows for the 
time lag between the submission of the cost reports and the settlements from the 
intermediaries.  
 
Cash Disbursements  
 
All disbursements are made out of one general operating account.  Petty cash 
expended is reimbursed from the account monthly or upon request of the custodian of 
the petty cash fund.  Petty cash expenses are recorded to the general ledger at the time 
of reimbursement. 
 
 
Disbursement Procedures 
 
All checks drawn by the health center must be reviewed and signed by the Chief 
Financial Officer or the Executive Director.  In his/her absence, a signature stamp may 
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be used for essential disbursements provided a list of the checks so stamped is 
submitted for review.  The signature stamp is kept in a locked cabinet at all times.  
Checks in the amount of $10,000 or more require two signatures. 
 
Pre-approval limits and requirements are detailed on page 28 under Purchasing 
Procedures.  
 
A multipart check is prepared for disbursements paid from the general operating 
account. The bottom two-thirds of the check is sent as payment to vendors.  The top 
portion of the check is stapled to the invoice to provide the health center with adequate 
documentation for payment of the expenditure.  The detailed procedures related to the 
preparation, distribution, and retention of the disbursement vouchers are prescribed in 
the accounts payable section. 
 
Bank account reconciliation is completed each month to ensure that all cash 
transactions are properly recorded, and that there are no unusual endorsements. The 
bank statement is downloaded electronically and is reconciled to the appropriate cash 
balance in the general ledger.   
 
Petty Cash 
 
The finance department maintains one petty cash fund.  The fund is used for individual 
purchases.  Receipts must be submitted to substantiate disbursements and attached to 
a completed petty cash reimbursement request.  Transactions are recorded on the petty 
cash expenditures log. 
 
The petty cash fund's balance is set so that it will normally be sufficient for a full month 
before it requires reimbursement. The fund is reimbursed either at the end of the month 
or whenever the fund's balance falls to a certain amount determined by the custodian of 
the account.  Reimbursement is made from the general operating account upon 
submission of a requisition prepared by the custodian of the account. The requisition 
must include receipts or proper documentation for expenditures from the account.   
 
The reimbursement check is drawn to the order of Petty Cash.   
 
 
Cash Receipts  
 
The health center receives various types of cash receipts on a daily basis.  These 
include payments received via mail or electronic transfer such as contract revenue 
reimbursement, contributions, payment on patient accounts, electronic wire transfers 
such as Medicaid receipts and grant draw downs, as well as cash from patients and 
other miscellaneous items.   
 
Draw downs on Federal awards must minimize the time elapsing between the transfer 
of funds from the United States Treasury or the pass-through entity and the 
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disbursement by HCHC. All advance payments on Federal awards must be deposited 
and maintained in insured accounts whenever possible and in interest-bearing accounts 
unless the following applies; 
 

a)  HCHC receives less than $120,000 in Federal awards per year. 
b) The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would not be expected to 

earn interest in excess of $500 per year on Federal cash balances. 
c) The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that it 

would not be feasible within the expected Federal and non-Federal cash 
resources. 

d) A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest bearing 
accounts. 

 
Cash receipts procedures are established to insure that receipts are adequately 
safeguarded and properly deposited, that all receipts are properly recorded in the 
patient accounting records, and that receipts are identified in sufficient detail to facilitate 
preparation of the monthly financial reports. 
 
Amounts received and prepared deposits are held in a locked cabinet at all times and 
deposits are made at least once weekly and more often when practical. 
 
Cash Receipts – Mail or Billing  
 
As the mail is sorted, checks are segregated and distributed to the appropriate 
departments.  Third-party payments and patient payments received via mail are 
forwarded directly to the Billing Department, together with the Explanation of Benefits 
(EOB), for posting to patient accounts.  All other checks are forwarded directly to the 
Finance Department. 
 
Upon completion of each patient receipt posting batch, the designated person in the 
Billing Department forwards the checks in that batch to the Finance Department. 
Deposit slips are prepared in duplicate and are retained in the Finance Department.  A 
check summary voucher, a copy of the register tape listing all checks in the batch, and a 
cover sheet showing the total of the batch and general ledger account is included.   
 
The amount and account code indicated on the cover sheet is used to prepare the 
monthly billing cash receipts journal entry to the General Ledger. 
 
Cash Receipts – Front Desk 
 
Self-pay receipts (co-payments, deductibles, uninsured services) are received by the 
medical and dental front desks daily.  Payments may be made using cash, check or a 
credit card.   
 
The amount to be collected appears on the patient’s electronic record.  Front desk staff 
may enter the amount collected and the form of payment on their electronic patient 
record or manually record the amount collected. 
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At the end of each day, the staff member responsible for closing each front desk 
reconciles the cash receipts.  A transmittal receipt is prepared in triplicate showing a 
breakdown of cash, check and credit card payments for that day.  One copy is 
forwarded to the Finance Department with the payments, one copy is forwarded 
electronically to the Billing Department, and one copy is retained at the front desk. 
 
A log is kept in the Finance Department to ensure that each day’s cash receipts are 
received from the designated departments at all sites. 
 
A person preparing the bank deposit may combine several days’ front-desk cash 
receipts into a single deposit.  Deposit slips are prepared in duplicate.  One copy is 
included in the deposit to the bank and the other copy is retained in the Finance 
Department.  The transmittal receipts, a copy of the register tape listing all checks, and 
a cover sheet showing the total of the batch and the general ledger account is retained 
in the Finance Department. 
 
The amounts and account numbers indicated on the cover sheet are used to prepare 
the monthly front desk cash receipts journal entry to the General Ledger. 
 
 
Cash Receipts – Miscellaneous 
 
Other miscellaneous cash receipts include, but are not limited to, contract revenue 
reimbursements, contributions, COBRA payments, and enhanced fee payments.  These 
checks are forwarded directly to the Finance Department for processing. 
 
Checks are batched and prepared for deposit.  Deposit slips are prepared in duplicate.  
One copy is included in the deposit to the bank and the other copy is retained in the 
Finance Department.  A copy of the register tape listing all checks, and a cover sheet 
showing the total of the batch and the general ledger account is retained in the Finance 
Department. 
 
The amounts and account numbers indicated on the cover sheet are used to prepare 
the monthly miscellaneous cash receipt journal entry for the General Ledger. 
 
General Operating Account  
 
This account is currently held by Florence Savings Bank, One Main Street, Florence, 
Massachusetts.  Both manual and electronic transactions account for the monthly 
activity in the G.O.A.  An excel spreadsheet is maintained to give an approximate 
current balance.   Each month’s beginning balance is adjusted to reflect the actual 
amount reconciled to the general ledger.  If the balance in the G.O.A exceeds the 
amount reasonably needed for the operation of the Health Center, money is transferred 
to a money market account at Florence Savings Bank that earns higher interest. Funds 
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from this money market account are transferred back to the general operating account 
as needed.   
 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
 
On occasion, the health center receives other revenue unrelated to normal operations. 
This can include donations, pledges, or other non-operating receipts. Unless specifically 
designated for operating purposes, these funds are separated and deposited to one of 
the health centers designated or restricted bank accounts. Funds received in this 
manner are reported monthly to the Finance Committee. 
 
Grant and Contracts Revenue and Receivable Procedures 
 
Grants and contracts are managed based on specific instructions from each grantor or 
contract. Some advance funds and require progress reports for activities related to the 
funding. Funds received from these funding sources are recorded as deferred revenues 
until earned. Once funds are considered earned they are recorded by general ledger 
entry to the proper earned revenue account. 
 
Other Grants or Contracts require that expenses be incurred before being reimbursed. 
These are vouchered on a regular schedule acceptable to the granting agency, in the 
format required. The vouchers could be monthly, quarterly or by some other agreed 
upon time line. The amounts of the vouchers are credited to the proper earned revenue 
account and debited to a receivable account. The proper code for the grant or contract 
is required to properly record the earned revenue. The revenue is also recorded to the 
proper department as some contracts fund more than one department or program. 
When payment is received, standard monthly journal entries are made to credit the 
proper receivable account and debit the general operating cash account.  
 
Standard Journal Entries 
 
Most journal Entries are recorded and posted monthly. Standard journal entries include: 
bank interest and fees, deposits, withdrawals, depreciation, and contracts vouchered to 
name a few.  Adjusting or correcting entries are also posted each month. Gains or 
losses on investments are recorded and posted quarterly.   
 
Journal entries are recorded first in excel spreadsheets. The entries are labelled to 
allow for tracing the entries in the accounting software.  Each entry is assigned a 
number that includes the month and the number of the entry. An example would be G/L 
entry 10-06. This was done in October and is the sixth entry for that month. The backup 
documentation which supports the journal entry is also numbered similarly. 
 
Once an entry is posted, all reports including backup are filed with all other general 
ledger entries for that month. These reports are kept for future reference, reconciliation 
and documentation. 
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COST PRINCIPLES 
 
HCHC is responsible for the effective and efficient administration of Federal, state and 
private awards through the application of sound management practices and must 
comply with applicable cost principles as outlined in 45 CFR 75 subpart E. 
 
 

COST ALLOCATION PLAN  
 
Direct Cost Allocation: 
 
Costs are allocated to programs on a direct basis whenever possible. Department 
Heads or their designees submit invoices and bills with their approval and confirm that 
the expense is for their departments. In cases where an expense is shared by 
departments/programs allocation methods have been developed to allocate expenses 
to the departments/programs that benefit from the costs. Following are the current 
allocation plans and methods used by the Health Center. 
 
Payroll is the largest expense that needs to be allocated. Salaries and wages are 
allocated based on individuals actual time worked in each program. Each employee 
completes a bi-weekly electronic time sheet listing the hours and the department those 
hours were worked in.  This information is then entered into an excel spreadsheet that is 
used to generate a monthly journal entry to allocate payroll expenses to the correct 
departments. 
 
Cost Allocation for Internal Management: 
 
There are many departments that support different segments of the Health Centers. The 
departments that are shared by different segments of the Center are: 
 
Facilities/Maintenance for each site, Billing Office services which are shared by Medical, 
Dental and Mental Health Services (all billable services), Administration/Front desks at 
each main site and Overhead/Indirect which is shared by all services of the agency. 
Each department is used by more than one program and allocation plans have been 
developed to allocate expenses to the programs based on what is considered fair and 
logical. Costs for these shared services are pooled into one cost center and then 
allocated to programs based on the following: 
 

a) Facilities costs are recorded in separate cost pools for each site. Any expenses 
related to overall building operation are considered shared services and recorded 
to these pools. Costs are then allocated monthly to each program based on the 
square footage occupied by each program in that building. This pool can contain 
non-facility costs that need to be distributed by square feet. 

b) Administration/Front Desk services are located at each main site and the 
services currently benefit two Departments/Programs at each site. These 
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departments are Medical & Behavioral Health. Originally the Dental Department 
was part of the allocation, currently dental has its’ own front desk, so no costs are 
allocated to dental. Administrative or Front Desk costs are allocated to the 
programs based on the annual visits in each program during the previous fiscal 
year. 

c) The billing office is one service that is shared by all sites, but not by all programs. 
The billing office services only benefit the programs that bill for patient services. 
For this reason the costs that are associated with the billing office are pooled and 
allocated based on visits or units of service provided for the month. 

d) Indirect/Overhead costs are costs that benefit the whole Center. These are costs 
such as salaries and associated costs of the Executive Office, Finance 
Department or Human Resources. These expenses are pooled and allocated 
based on the modified direct costs (excludes cost of subcontracts over $25,000 
in the base) of each program, sub-program or grant. Every program gets an even 
share allocated to it based on their direct expenses (with all other allocated 
expenses already included). This method allows each program to be allocated 
the same percentage of Indirect/Overhead costs as every other department in 
the Center. 

 
These allocation methods are currently in place in the event that a managerial cost 
allocation is used, but are to be reviewed from time to time based on changes to 
programs, sites or need. 
 
 
Regulatory Cost Allocation Methods: 
 
Other methods as directed by regulatory agencies are used per their guidelines and 
requirements. 
 
 
 
Procurement  
 
HCHC general procurement standards; 

a) Procurement procedures reflect applicable federal and state regulations. 
 

b) HCHC maintains a written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and 
governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award and 
administration of contracts. This policy has a formal documented process for 
disclosing all real or apparent conflicts of interest that are discovered or that have 
been brought to attention in connection with HCHC’s activities. See copy of 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY with REGULATORY REFERENCE:  45 CFR 
75.327 and 42 CFR Pt 51c.304 (b) attached as Appendix F. 
 
No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or 
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administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real 
or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the 
employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or 
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the 
parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal 
benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and 
agents of HCHC may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of 
monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts. However, HCHC may 
set standards for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial or the 
gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. The standards of conduct must 
provide for disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such standards by 
officers, employees, or agents of the non-Federal entity. 
 

c) HCHC's procurements must avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative 
items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or breaking out 
procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where appropriate, an 
analysis will be made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other 
appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach. 
 

d) HCHC encourages the use of entering into state and local intergovernmental 
agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate for procurement or use 
of common or shared goods and services.  
 

e) HCHC encourages the use of Federal excess and surplus property in lieu of 
purchasing new equipment and property whenever such use is feasible and 
reduces project costs. 
 

f) HCHC encourages the use of value engineering clauses in contracts for 
construction projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost 
reductions. Value engineering is a systematic and creative analysis of each 
contract item or task to ensure that its essential function is provided at the overall 
lower cost. 
 

g) HCHC must award contracts only to responsible contractors possessing the 
ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed 
procurement. Consideration will be given to such matters as contractor integrity, 
compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and 
technical resources. 
 

h) HCHC must maintain records sufficient to detail the history of procurement. 
These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: 
rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor 
selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price. 
 

i) HCHC may use a time and materials type contract only after a determination that 
no other contract is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the 
contractor exceeds at its own risk. 
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1)  Time and materials type contract means a contract whose cost to a non-
Federal entity is the sum of:  

i. The actual cost of materials; and 
ii. Direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, 

general and administrative expenses, and profit. 
2) Since this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-    

materials contract provides no positive profit incentive to the contractor for 
cost control or labor efficiency. Therefore, each contract must set a ceiling 
price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, HCHC must 
assert a high degree of oversight in order to obtain reasonable assurance 
that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls. 
 

j) HCHC alone must be responsible, in accordance with good administrative 
practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of all contractual and 
administrative issues arising out of procurements. These issues include, but are 
not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes, and claims. These standards 
do not relieve the non-Federal entity of any contractual responsibilities under its 
contracts. The HHS awarding agency will not substitute its judgment for that of 
the non-Federal entity unless the matter is primarily a Federal concern. Violations 
of law will be referred to the local, tribal, state, or Federal authority having proper 
jurisdiction. 
 

k) The type of procuring instruments used will be determined HCHC but shall be 
appropriate for the particular procurement and for promoting the best interest of 
the program or project involved. 
 

Competition; 
 

a) All procurement transactions must be conducted in a manner providing full and 
open competition consistent with the standards of this section. In order to ensure 
objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, 
contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of 
work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals must be excluded from 
competing for such procurements. Some of the situations considered to be 
restrictive of competition include but are not limited to: 

1) Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to 
do business; 

2) Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding; 
3) Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated 

companies; 
4) Noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer contracts; 
5) Organizational conflicts of interest; 
6) Specifying only a “brand name” product instead of allowing “an equal” 

product to be offered and describing the performance or other relevant 
requirements of the procurement; and 
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7) Any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 
 

b) HCHC must conduct procurements in a manner that prohibits the use of 
statutorily or administratively imposed state, local, or tribal geographical 
preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where 
applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic 
preference. Nothing in this section preempts state licensing laws. When 
contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location 
may be a selection criterion provided its application leaves an appropriate 
number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of the project, to compete for 
the contract. 
 

c) HCHC must have written procedures for procurement transactions. These 
procedures must ensure that all solicitations: 

1) Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements 
for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description must 
not, in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict 
competition. The description may include a statement of the qualitative 
nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when 
necessary, must set forth those minimum essential characteristics and 
standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. 
Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all possible. When 
it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description 
of the technical requirements, a “brand name or equivalent” description 
may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient 
requirements of procurement. The specific features of the named brand 
which must be met by offers must be clearly stated; and 

2) Identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all other factors 
to be used in evaluating bids or proposals. 

3) HCHC must ensure that all prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products 
which are used in acquiring goods and services are current and include 
enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. 
Also, HCHC must not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the 
solicitation period. 

 
Procurement Procedures; 
 
HCHC must use one of the following methods of procurement; 
 

a) Procurement by micro-purchases. Procurement by micro-purchase is the 
acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does 
not exceed the micro-purchase threshold as defined by the Federal Acquisition 
Regulation (current threshold $3,500). To the extent practicable, HCHC will 
distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. Micro-purchases 
may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations provided the acquisition 
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price is considered to be reasonable. 
 

b)  Procurement by small purchase procedures. Small purchase procedures are 
those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing services, 
supplies, or other property that do not cost more than the Simplified Acquisition 
Threshold as defined by the Federal Acquisition Regulation (current thresholds 
greater than $3,500 and less than or equal to $150,000). If small purchase 
procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from an 
adequate number of qualified sources. 
 

c) Procurement by sealed bids (formal advertising). Bids are publicly solicited and a 
firm fixed price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible 
bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the 
invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. The sealed bid method is the preferred 
method for procuring construction, if the conditions in paragraph (c)(1) of this 
section apply. 

1. In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions should 
be present: 

i. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase 
description is available; 

ii. Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete 
effectively for the business; and 

iii. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the 
selection of the successful bidder can be made principally on the 
basis of price. 

2. If sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply: 
i. Bids must be solicited from an adequate number of known 

suppliers, providing them sufficient response time prior to the date 
set for opening the bids, for local, and tribal governments, the 
invitation for bids must be publicly advertised; 

ii. The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and 
pertinent attachments, must define the items or services in order for 
the bidder to properly respond; 

iii. All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the 
invitation for bids; 

iv. A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Where specified in 
bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation cost, 
and life cycle costs must be considered in determining which bid is 
lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to determine the low 
bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually 
taken advantage of; and 

v. Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented 
reason. 
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d) Procurement by competitive proposals. The technique of competitive proposals is 
normally conducted with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a 
fixed price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded. It is generally used 
when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids. If this method is 
used, the following requirements apply: 

1. Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation 
factors and their relative importance. Any response to publicized requests 
for proposals must be considered to the maximum extent practical; 

2. Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified 
sources; 

3. HCHC must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of 
the proposals received and for selecting recipients; 

4. Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is 
most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors 
considered; and 

5. HCHC may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based 
procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services 
whereby competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified 
competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable 
compensation. The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, 
can only be used in procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be 
used to purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a potential 
source to perform the proposed effort. 
 

e) Procurement by noncompetitive proposals. Procurement by noncompetitive 
proposals is procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source 
and may be used only when one or more of the following circumstances apply: 

1. The item is available only from a single source; 
2. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a 

delay resulting from competitive solicitation; 
3. The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes 

noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the non-
Federal entity; or 

4. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined 
inadequate. 

f) Contracting with small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, 
and labor surplus area firms 

1. HCHC must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority 
businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms 
are used when possible. 

2. Affirmative steps must include: 
i. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's 

business enterprises on solicitation lists; 
ii. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's 

business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential 
sources; 
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iii. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into 
smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small 
and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 

iv. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, 
which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, 
and women's business enterprises; 

v. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such 
organizations as the Small Business Administration and the 
Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce; 

vi. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take 
the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (2)(i) through (v) of this 
section. 
 

g) Contract cost and price. 
1. HCHC must perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every 

procurement action in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, 
(currently $150,000) including contract modifications. The method and 
degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular 
procurement situation, but as a starting point, HCHC must make 
independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals. 

2. HCHC must negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each 
contract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where cost 
analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, 
consideration must be given to the complexity of the work to be 
performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's investment, 
the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, 
and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar 
work. 

3. Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal 
award are allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost 
estimates included in negotiated prices would be allowable under CFR 75 
subpart E. 

4. The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost 
methods of contracting must not be used. 
 

h) Bonding requirements. 
1. For construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts 

exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, (currently $150,000) the 
HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may accept the bonding 
policy and requirements of the non-Federal entity provided that the HHS 
awarding agency or pass-through entity has made a determination that the 
Federal interest is adequately protected. If such a determination has not 
been made, the minimum requirements must be as follows: 

i. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the 
bid price. The “bid guarantee” must consist of a firm commitment 
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such as a bid bond, certified check, or other negotiable instrument 
accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon 
acceptance of the bid, execute such contractual documents as may 
be required within the time specified. 

ii. A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of 
the contract price. A “performance bond” is one executed in 
connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's 
obligations under such contract. 

iii. A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the 
contract price. A “payment bond” is one executed in connection 
with a contract to assure payment as required by law of all persons 
supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided 
for in the contract. 

iv. Where bonds are required in the situations described herein, the 
bonds shall be obtained from companies holding certificates of 
authority as acceptable sureties pursuant to 31 CFR part 223. 

 
 
 
Additional Procurement Procedures; 
 
Purchase orders are not used.  Regular operating supplies are ordered by the 
designated person within each department and do not require prior approval. 
Additionally, a designated person within each department checks and confirms the 
accuracy and completeness of deliveries. Invoices are randomly audited by the Finance 
Department to ensure that orders are for normal operating supplies and do not require 
further approval. 
 
Requests for purchases of items that cost more than $500 and which are not 
considered regular operating supplies must be submitted on a Purchase Requisition 
form. (See Appendix C)  All other non-regular purchases can be submitted either on a 
Purchase Requisition or a Check Request form (See Appendix D). The purchase can be 
made when proper approval for the purchase has been received.  See below for 
guidelines of required approvals based on the cost of the purchase. In most cases the 
purchase will be for a specific department who will then arrange the purchase. The 
Finance Department offers assistance and guidance whenever needed. 
 
Payment arrangements need to be made in advance, as the health center cannot 
accept C.O.D. shipments.  
 
Required signature authorizations on purchase requests for different levels of 
purchases are as follows: 
 
PURCHASE   REQUIRED SIGNATURES/APPROVALS 
Up to $500   Dept. Head or Designee signature only 
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$501 to $5,000  Dept. Head and CEO or CFO  
 
$5,001 to $10,000  Dept. Head and CEO and CFO. 
 
$10,001 & over CEO, CFO and Finance Committee or Chair of BOD 
 
Travel Reimbursement Procedures 
 
HCHC will reimburse employees for business-related travel. The amount of 
reimbursement per mile is determined by the Finance Committee or Board and is 
subject to change.  Mileage Reimbursement Requests (See appendix E) must be 
completed and signed by the employee and the employee’s supervisor and submitted to 
the Finance Department for payment. Expenses for transportation, parking, tolls, hotels, 
food incurred as part of a business related trip and other related travel expenses are 
considered reimbursable if they comply with the Health Center travel policy as 
established by the Personnel Committee and listed in the Personnel Policies Handbook. 
 
Reimbursement for travel-related expenses requires documentation of the expenditure 
through third-party receipts or other verifiable documentation. 
 
For local travel, an employee who uses his or her own vehicle will be reimbursed upon 
completion of a Mileage Reimbursement Request.  (Refer to Appendix E)  The 
employee’s immediate supervisor must approve the request.  Reimbursement will be at 
the current mileage rate established by the Finance Committee. Receipts must be 
presented for reimbursement of other related travel expenses, such as tolls and parking. 
 
Overnight travel will be reimbursed, or pre-paid when required, using a Check Request 
Form.   Payments will be limited to the cost of transportation, hotel accommodations, 
transfers to and from the destination (taxi or bus fares, etc.) and any other items 
determined to be travel related. The employee’s immediate supervisor must approve the 
check request. Receipts or other verifiable documentation must accompany the request. 
 
Continuing Education Reimbursement Procedures 
 
The health center pays for continuing education and related travel expenses provided 
such education is relevant to the employee’s responsibilities and is deemed beneficial to 
the health center. 
 
Request for reimbursement, or pre-payment when required, must be submitted on a 
Check Request Form and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor.  Third-
party receipts or supporting documentation must accompany the request.   
 
Certain direct care providers receive stipulated amounts based on their current 
contracts.  Approval of continuing education expenses for all other staff is outlined in the 
Personnel Policies Handbook or at the discretion of the employee’s immediate 
supervisor. 
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Accounts Payable Procedures 
 
The health center maintains its accounting records on an accrual basis of accounting.   
 
The Finance Department maintains copies of receiving reports.  Approval must appear 
on the receiving report by the receiving employee attesting that the goods were 
received and meet specification. These documents are used to establish the propriety 
of payments on vendor's invoices.  Upon the receipt of the invoice, the invoice is 
compared with the supporting documentation.  Finance prepares the payment voucher 
and records an entry in the Accounts Payable module of the financial software debiting 
an asset or expense account and crediting the accounts payable account.   
 
A payment voucher is not prepared for an open invoice until the invoice presented for 
payment has been matched to the approved receiving report.  In the absence of a 
receiving report, approval may be given directly on the invoice. 
 
Invoices for consultants and other services are approved by appropriate personnel. 
 
Standard recurring expenses do not require supervisory approval; however, all 
expenses are reviewed by the Accounts Payable Manager or Chief Financial Officer 
prior to payment. 
 
Travel expenses are reimbursed upon submission of a Mileage Reimbursement 
Request or a Check Request as appropriate. Requests must be supported by receipts 
and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor. 
 
Reimbursement of miscellaneous expenses incurred on behalf of the Health Center is 
issued upon submission of a Check Request.  Requests must be supported by receipts 
and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor 
 
Upon receipt of a vendor's invoice, the receiving report on file is matched with the 
invoice.   Approved invoices are assigned an account code and submitted to the 
Accounts Payable Manager for review and approval.  Invoices are entered into the 
financial software system daily.  The software system automatically assigns a unique 
reference number to each invoice as it is entered and a unique batch number to each 
batch of invoices.  The reference number is written on the invoice for later identification.  
The batch is held until intentionally released for posting to the General Ledger.  Entered 
invoices are then filed alphabetically. 
 
 
Check Preparation 
 
The check is a multi-part form containing the check and additional accounting 
information such as vendor identification, invoice number, invoice date, purchase price 
and invoice description. 
 
Multiple invoices for a single vendor may be combined in one check. 



 

January 2018  31 

 
Each check run is automatically assigned a unique check batch number by the software 
system.  A batch report for each check run is printed and retained in the Finance 
Department. 
 
Checks are printed weekly. Additional checks may be issued in the case of emergency 
or as determined by the Finance Department. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer may review the supporting documentation before signing 
checks.  
 
Payment Procedures 
 
The bottom 2/3 of the check is mailed to the vendor for payment, together with 
remittance copies as may be requested by the vendor.  The top portion of the check is 
attached to the related invoices and supporting documentation and filed alphabetically 
by vendor in the Finance Department. 
 
Check not cleared 
 
If a check is not cleared after 120 days, the payee will be notified in writing with 
suggested options for resolving the final distribution of funds. 
 
Lost Checks 
 
Lost checks will be re-issued upon written request by the payee. 
 
 
 

Monthly Management Reports 
 
Upon completion of all monthly journal entries, financial reports are generated from the 
accounting software system. The reports include balance sheet and income statement 
reports. The reports are reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer prior to distribution to 
the Chief Executive Officer, Finance Committee, Board of Directors, and Department 
Heads. Reports are usually run by the fifteenth of each month so as to be ready for the 
monthly Finance Committee meeting.  
 
 
Payroll Procedures 
 
Payroll is based upon time sheets electronically prepared by each employee.   If an 
employee works in more than one department/program, he or she must indicate the 
number of hours spent on each.   
 



 

January 2018  32 

Time sheets are generated bi-weekly with a beginning date of Monday and an ending 
date of the following Sunday.  Checks are issued bi-weekly by the payroll service, 
currently Checkwriters. There are normally 26 pay periods annually.   
 
The Human Resources Department maintains all personnel records. Hilltown 
Community Health Centers, Inc. is an at-will employer committed to non-discrimination 
& affirmative action. All transactions pertaining to personnel are documented with the 
Personnel Action Form being the most used of all personnel forms. The Personnel 
Policies Handbook details personnel procedures, benefits and other pertinent personnel 
information.  
 
Employees’ vacation, sick, personal and accrued holiday time is tracked through the 
payroll systems and appears on each check stub.  Benefit leave for each employee is 
pro-rated based on the customary number of hours worked.   (For a detailed 
explanation of benefits, refer to the Personnel Policies Handbook.)    
 
Employees may voluntarily contribute to United Way through payroll deductions.   
 
Employees may contribute to a tax-deferred 403b retirement annuity.  Contributions are 
voluntary.  Matching contributions by the Health Center, in any, are determined annually 
for eligible employees.  
 
At the end of each 2-week pay period, employees electronically submit their timesheet.  
Managers then electronically approve timesheets.  Once all timesheets have been 
approved by a manager, the Finance Department transfers the information and prints 
copies of each timesheet.  Timesheets and a draft copy of the payroll register are 
reviewed by the approved staff before final submission to the payroll company. 
 
For each pay period, payroll costs are entered into payroll and tax journals that are 
posted to the general ledger at month’s end. Payroll allocation of employees time is 
determined by the department/program entered on their timesheet. 
 
United Way pledge forms are made available annually.  The HR and /or Finance 
Department keeps copies of the signed pledge forms.  The total United Way 
contribution for each pay period is recorded in the payroll journal and is posted to the 
general ledger at month’s end.  At the end of each month, a check request is processed 
and a check issued totaling the payroll deductions that month. 
 
The Human Resource Department keeps copies of enrollments in the tax-deferred 
retirement annuity.   Contributions are forwarded to the managing agency each pay 
period.  The contribution list is submitted electronically; payment is made by via 
electronic withdrawal from the operating account.   
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Payroll Reports Maintained 
 

1. Payroll register that identifies gross pay, less deductions and net pay by 
employee per pay period.  Prepared by payroll service and held in Finance. 

2. Check register.  Prepared by payroll service and held in Finance. 
3. Employees’ earnings records that identifies cumulative gross pay and cumulative 

deductions and net pay for individual employees.  Prepared by payroll service 
and held in Finance. 

4. Available vacation leave, sick leave, personal hours and accrued holiday hours 
per employee.   Prepared by payroll service and held in the Human Resources 
Department. 

5. Individual contributions to the health center’s tax-deferred retirement annuity.  
Report from payroll service and transmission report prepared by Finance. 

6. Quarterly IRS Form 941.  Prepared by payroll service and held in Finance. 
7. 1099 Forms.  Prepared by Finance. 
8. Payroll distribution reports documenting gross payroll for each employee and the 

program in which they worked.  
 
Accounting for Fixed Assets 
 
Items which have a useful life of more than one year and a cost of $5,000 or more are 
considered capital items or fixed assets. These items must meet the guidelines set out 
in the Purchasing Procedures outlined above. These items are depreciated in a straight-
line method based on current acceptable depreciation guidelines, acceptable useful 
lives and approved by our annual financial audit. 
 
Purchased items are recorded on a spread sheet each fiscal year. The spreadsheet 
records the date and item purchased, the vendor from which it was purchased, cost, 
account to which it was coded and any other information considered pertinent. 
Depreciation is recorded based on our interpretation of current guidelines and is 
adjusted as determined at time of the annual audit. Items are assigned a unique number 
used to identify the item when physical inventories are completed. Physical inventories 
are completed and documented annually. The physical inventory matches the item to 
the inventory record and notes the location of the item. All discrepancies must be 
resolved.  
 
When a fixed asset is retired, it is removed by netting the original value against the 
depreciation to determine any net loss. If the asset is sold, the amount from the sale is 
added to the net value at disposal and any difference is recorded as a gain or loss on 
the asset sold, whichever is appropriate. 
 
As required by Federal awarding agencies, HCHC will submit reports on the status of 
Real Property in which the Federal Government retains an interest.  
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Patient Revenue and Receivable Process 
 
Reports are generated monthly by the Billing Department. The reports detail charges, 
receipts, adjustments and bad debt for patient receivables. Each set of monthly reports 
includes a reconciliation of receivable balances which matches the amounts on the 
patient receivable systems. An input sheet of all transactions is prepared using these 
reports and is entered into the general ledger. Copies of all pertinent reports are 
attached to the input sheet for documentation of the monthly entries. See cash receipts 
section for how patient receipts are handled and recorded. 
 
Liquidity Management  
 
HCHC will review and quantify the available resources on hand to meet cash needs for 
expenditures within one year and communicate qualitative and quantitative information 
regarding liquidity. The result of the review process, i.e. the Liquidity Plan will determine 
how liquid assets are managed to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one 
year following the balance sheet date.  
 
HCHC’s Liquidity Management Plan will consider the following items; 
 

1. Determining the amount of cash and short-term investments to keep on hand to 
meet 60 days of operating expense (how is the organization going to structure its 
financial assets to ensure they are available). 

2. Identifying the average monthly operating expenses. 
3. Consider investing any excess daily cash balances not needed to meet current 

general operating expenses. 
4. Appropriate use of the line of credit to cover cash short-falls. 
5. Ensuring the timely collection of receivables. 
6. Consideration of contractual obligations, covenants, or donor restrictions that 

would limit the availability of resources to meet operating expenses in the next 
year. 

 
In compliance with FASB ASU 2016-14 HCHC will consider and if required implement 
and disclose the following: 
 

1. Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes 
of net assets at the end of the period, That is, HCHC will report amounts for net 
assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions, as well 
as the currently required amount for total net assets. 

2. Present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in 
each of the two classes of net assets. HCHC will continue to report the currently 
required amount of the change in total net assets for the period. 

3. Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for 
operating cash flows using either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no 
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longer require the presentation or disclosure of the indirect method 
(reconciliation) if HCHC were to use the direct method. 

4. Provide the following enhanced disclosures about: 
a. Amounts and purposes of governing board designations, appropriations, 

and similar actions that result in self-imposed limits on the use of 
resources without donor-imposed restrictions as of the end of the period. 

b. Composition of net assets with donor restrictions at the end of the period 
and how the restrictions affect the use of resources. 

c. Qualitative information that communicates how HCHC manages its liquid 
resources available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within 
one year of the balance sheet date. 

d. Quantitative information, either on the face of the balance sheet or in the 
notes, and additional qualitative information in the notes as necessary, 
that communicates the availability HCHC’s financial assets at the balance 
sheet date to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year of 
the balance sheet date. Availability of a financial asset may be affected by 
(1) its nature, (2) external limits imposed by donors, grantors, laws, and 
contracts with others, and (3) internal limits imposed by governing board 
decisions. 

e. Amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their 
functional classification. That analysis of expenses is to be provided in one 
location, which could be on the face of the statement of activities, as a 
separate statement, or in notes to financial statements. 

f. Method(s) used to allocate costs among program and support functions. 
g. Underwater endowment funds, which include required disclosures of (1) 

HCHC’s policy, and any actions taken during the period, concerning 
appropriation from underwater endowment funds, (2) the aggregate fair 
value of such funds, (3) the aggregate of the original gift amounts (or level 
required by donor or law) to be maintained, and (4) the aggregate amount 
by which funds are underwater (deficiencies), which are to be classified as 
part of net assets with donor restrictions. 
 

5. Report investment return net of external and direct internal investment expenses 
and no longer require disclosure of those netted expenses. 
 

6. Use, in the absence of explicit donor stipulations, the placed-in-service approach 
for reporting expirations of restrictions on gifts of cash or other assets to be used 
to acquire or construct a long-lived asset and reclassify any amounts from net 
assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions for such 
long-lived assets that have been placed in service as of the beginning of the 
period of adoption (thus eliminating the current option to release the donor-
imposed restriction over the estimated useful life of the acquired asset). 
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Regulatory Reporting 
 
Systems and reports have been established to help the health center comply with all 
regulatory reporting. Many reports are required of the health center and all reports 
require different formats to report the information. The accounting system has been 
developed to allow for the different reporting formats and must include; 
 

a) Identification, in its accounts, of all Federal awards received and expended and 
the Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and 
Federal award identification must include, as applicable, the CFDA title and 
number, Federal award identification number and year, name of the HHS 
awarding agency, and name of the pass-through entity, if any. 

b) Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each 
Federal award or program in accordance with the reporting requirements set 
forth in §§75.341 and 75.342. If an HHS awarding agency requires reporting on 
an accrual basis from a recipient that maintains its records on other than an 
accrual basis, the recipient must not be required to establish an accrual 
accounting system. This recipient may develop accrual data for its reports on the 
basis of an analysis of the documentation on hand. Similarly, a pass-through 
entity must not require a subrecipient to establish an accrual accounting system 
and must allow the subrecipient to develop accrual data for its reports on the 
basis of an analysis of the documentation on hand. 

c) Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for federally-
funded activities. These records must contain information pertaining to Federal 
awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, 
income and interest and be supported by source documentation. 

d) Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other 
assets. The non-Federal entity must adequately safeguard all assets and assure 
that they are used solely for authorized purposes. 

e) Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each Federal award. 
f) Written procedures to implement the requirements of §75.305. 
g) Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance with 

subpart E of this part and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 
 
 
 
 The major reports which are required include:  
 
Annual, Federal Uniform Data System (UDS) Report 
Annual audit in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards 
45 (CFR) Part 75 
Annual grant year Federal Financial Status Report (FSR) 
State annual Uniform Financial Report (UFR) 
IRS Tax Form 990 
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State tax Form PC 
Federal cash draw down quarterly report PSC-272 
Medicare annual cost report 
Medicaid annual cost report  
The system also allows for grant reporting, salary surveys and other numerous reports 
which may be required from time to time. These include the annual Federal 330 grant 
budget renewal, DPH annual contract budget adjustments and various local and private 
grants. 
 
 
 
Annual Fiscal Audit Requirements 

a)  
HCHC must provide for and submit an independent annual financial audit that is 
conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
and the applicable requirements prescribed in 45 CFR Part 75 Subpart F. HCHC 
must promptly follow up and take corrective action on audit findings, including 
preparation of a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action 
plan in accordance with 45 CFR 75.511Auditor procurement; 
In procuring audit services, the procurement standards prescribed under this 
policy must be adhered to, as applicable. When procuring audit services, the 
objective is to obtain high-quality audits. In requesting proposals for audit 
services, the objectives and scope of the audit must be made clear and HCHC 
must request a copy of the audit organization's peer review report which the 
auditor is required to provide under GAGAS. Factors to be considered in 
evaluating each proposal for audit services include the responsiveness to the 
request for proposal, relevant experience, availability of staff with professional 
qualifications and technical abilities, the results of peer and external quality 
control reviews, and price. Whenever possible, HCHC must make positive efforts 
to utilize small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business 
enterprises, in procuring audit services, as applicable. 

b) Restriction on auditor preparing indirect cost proposals. 
An auditor who prepares the indirect cost proposal or cost allocation plan may 
not also be selected to perform the audit required by this part when the indirect 
costs recovered by the auditee during the prior year exceeded $1 million. This 
restriction applies to the base year used in the preparation of the indirect cost 
proposal or cost allocation plan and any subsequent years in which the resulting 
indirect cost agreement or cost allocation plan is used to recover costs. 

c) HCHC Board of Director involvement in selection of auditor;  
Annually the HCHC Board of Directors will review and appoint the Auditor based 
upon the procurement standards. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

January 2018  38 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 



 

January 2018  39 

 
 

APPENDIX B1 & B2 
 

CHART OF ACCOUNTS 
AND 

SUB ACCOUNT SEGMENTS 



 

January 2018  40 

 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
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Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Cap Link 

FY YTD Mar. YTD June YTD Sep. YTD Oct. TARGET COMMENT

2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 Notes on Trend

Liquidity Measures

Operating Days Cash 7                    9                    3                    1                    15                  
Measures the number of days HCHC can cover daily 

operating cash needs.
> 30-45 Days Not Meeting Benchmark

Current Ratio 1.24                  0.78                  0.84                  0.80                  0.94                  Measures HCHC's ability to meet current obligations. >1.25 Not Meeting Benchmark

Patient Services AR Days 33                     30                     34                     39                     42                     
Measures HCHC's ability to bill and collect patient 

receivables
< 60-75 Days Doing Better than Benchmark

Accounts Payable Days 56                     94                     64                     58                     30                     Measures HCHC's ability to pay bills < 45 Days Doing Better than Benchmark

Profitability Measures

Net Operational Margin -3.4% -10.5% -5.5% -5.6% -4.1% Measures HCHC's Financial Health > 1 to 3% Not Meeting Benchmark

Bottom Line Margin 9.6% 8.5% 5.6% 2.3% 2.9%
Measures HCHC's Financial Health but includes non-

operational activities
> 3% Not Meeting Benchmark

Leverage

Total Liabilities to Total Net Assets 29.2% 33.9% 26.3% 29.1% 33.8% Measures HCHC's total Liabilities to total Net Assets < 30% Not Meeting Benchmark

Operational Measures

Medical Visits 18,727             4,371                8,863                13,067             15,109             

Net Medical Revenue per Visit 134.56$           144.39$           144.02$           144.38$           146.08$           

Dental Visits 14,880             3,512                7,426                11,454             12,953             

Net Dental Revenue per Visit 113.60$           109.03$           115.98$           116.41$           116.88$           

Behavioral Health Visits 3,809                1,002                2,120                3,129                3,586                

Net BH Revenue per Visit 95.70$             85.29$             89.42$             91.01$             88.72$             

Optometry Visits 2,329                523                   1,124                1,726                1,973                

Net Optometry Revenue per Visit 79.61$             91.60$             85.75$             87.29$             88.73$             

Hilltown CHC
Dashboard And Summary Financial Results 

October 2018
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Period Ending Oct. 2018

Oct. 2018 Oct. 2018 Over (Under) YTD Total YTD Total Over (Under) YTD PY Over (Under)
Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Cur. v. PY YTD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Revenue

Patient Services - Medical 320,564                 266,091                 54,473                       2,207,149              2,327,024              (119,875)                2,090,075              117,074                 

Visits 2,042                     1,917                     125                            15,109                   16,842                   (1,733)                    15,439                   (330)                       

Revenue/Visit 156.99$                 138.81$                 18.18$                       146.08$                 138.17$                 7.91$                     135.38$                 10.71$                   

Patient Services - Dental 180,514                 224,955                 (44,441)                     1,513,921              1,967,302              (453,381)                1,400,652              113,269                 

Visits 1,499                     1,781                     (282)                           12,953                   15,841                   (2,888)                    12,297                   656                        

Revenue/Visit 120.42$                 126.31$                 (5.89)$                       116.88$                 124.19$                 (7.31)$                    113.90$                 2.98$                     

Patient Services - Beh. Health 33,376                   42,825                   (9,449)                       318,156                 393,822                 (75,666)                  312,505                 5,651                     

Visits 457                        439                        18                              3,586                     4,021                     (435)                       3,215                     371                        

Revenue/Visit 73.03$                   97.55$                   (24.52)$                     88.72$                   97.94$                   (9.22)$                    97.20$                   (8.48)$                    

Patient Services - Optometry 24,410                   25,502                   (1,092)                       175,067                 243,844                 (68,777)                  150,631                 24,436                   

Visits 247                        324                        (77)                             1,973                     3,098                     (1,125)                    1,961                     12                           

Revenue/Visit 98.83$                   78.71$                   20.12$                       88.73$                   78.71$                   10.02$                   76.81$                   11.92$                   

Patient Services - Optometry Hardware 6,273                     7,490                     (1,217)                       70,673                   70,994                   (321)                       63,862                   6,811                     

Patient Services - Pharmacy 7,039                     12,500                   (5,461)                       112,952                 125,000                 (12,048)                  132,793                 (19,841)                  

Quality & Other Incentives 589                        -                         589                            11,691                   -                         11,691                   80,602                   (68,911)                  

HRSA 330 Grant 218,576                 128,875                 89,701                       1,451,251              1,288,750              162,501                 1,256,293              194,959                 

Other Grants & Contracts 47,378                   85,394                   (38,016)                     758,669                 843,089                 (84,420)                  661,653                 97,016                   

Int., Dividends Gain /(Loss) Investments (31,840)                  2,500                     (34,340)                     (5,057)                    25,000                   (30,057)                  67,795                   (72,852)                  

Rental & Misc. Income 2,476                     2,427                     49                              29,987                   24,270                   5,717                     26,750                   3,237                     

Total Operating Revenue 809,354                 798,559                 10,795                       6,644,459              7,309,095              (664,636)                6,243,611              400,848                 

Compensation and related expenses

Salaries and wages 531,640                 565,386                 (33,746)                     4,783,203              5,124,567              (341,364)                4,459,255              323,948                 

Payroll taxes 38,570                   42,969                   (4,399)                       352,298                 389,465                 (37,167)                  334,923                 17,375                   

Fringe benefits 39,504                   48,056                   (8,552)                       392,288                 435,576                 (43,288)                  405,222                 (12,934)                  

Total Compensation & related expenses 609,714                 656,411                 (46,697)                     5,527,790              5,949,608              (421,818)                5,199,401              328,389                 

No . of week days 23                           23                           -                             220                        220                        -                         220                        -                         

Staff cost per week day 26,509$                 28,540$                 (2,030)$                     25,126$                 27,044$                 (1,917)$                  23,634$                 1,493$                   

Hilltown Community Health Centers
Income Statement - All Departments
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Period Ending Oct. 2018

Oct. 2018 Oct. 2018 Over (Under) YTD Total YTD Total Over (Under) YTD PY Over (Under)
Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Cur. v. PY YTD

Hilltown Community Health Centers
Income Statement - All Departments

Other Operating Expenses

Advertising and marketing 150                        793                        (643)                           4,587                     7,925                     (3,338)                    4,095                     492                        

Bad debt 14,847                   13,880                   967                            82,700                   138,800                 (56,100)                  53,200                   29,501                   

Computer support 6,133                     16,442                   (10,308)                     74,054                   164,418                 (90,365)                  72,804                   1,250                     

Conference and meetings 230                        1,355                     (1,125)                       3,991                     13,550                   (9,559)                    14,583                   (10,592)                  

Continuing education 2,119                     2,788                     (669)                           15,839                   27,880                   (12,041)                  22,598                   (6,760)                    

Contracts and consulting 1,054                     4,772                     (3,717)                       25,269                   47,718                   (22,449)                  53,069                   (27,801)                  

Depreciation and amortization 22,127                   23,539                   (1,412)                       158,862                 231,534                 (72,672)                  136,947                 21,914                   

Dues and membership 439                        2,934                     (2,495)                       26,097                   29,340                   (3,243)                    80,686                   (54,590)                  

Equipment leases 2,782                     2,432                     350                            21,340                   24,320                   (2,980)                    19,647                   1,693                     

Insurance 2,070                     1,501                     569                            19,417                   15,010                   4,407                     12,022                   7,395                     

Interest 1,811                     1,500                     311                            15,250                   15,000                   250                        15,607                   (357)                       

Legal and accounting 2,167                     3,000                     (833)                           26,838                   30,000                   (3,162)                    31,897                   (5,059)                    

Licenses and fees 7,173                     4,331                     2,842                         48,512                   43,307                   5,205                     41,472                   7,040                     

Medical & dental lab and supplies 14,940                   20,139                   (5,199)                       115,973                 201,390                 (85,417)                  110,259                 5,714                     

Merchant CC Fees 1,492                     1,213                     279                            15,251                   12,130                   3,121                     11,760                   3,490                     

Office supplies and printing 1,028                     2,945                     (1,918)                       38,125                   29,354                   8,771                     27,076                   11,049                   

Postage 62                           1,986                     (1,924)                       13,708                   18,860                   (5,152)                    14,723                   (1,015)                    

Program supplies and materials 16,753                   20,760                   (4,007)                       203,412                 207,597                 (4,185)                    163,792                 39,620                   

Pharmacy & Optometry COGS 4,147                     5,034                     (887)                           98,620                   50,333                   48,287                   101,287                 (2,667)                    

Recruitment -                         426                        (426)                           340                        4,260                     (3,920)                    3,825                     (3,486)                    

Rent 8,841                     6,535                     2,306                         50,853                   65,350                   (14,497)                  30,915                   19,938                   

Repairs and maintenance 15,646                   12,836                   2,810                         145,838                 128,360                 17,478                   125,606                 20,232                   

Small equipment purchases -                         2,813                     (2,813)                       6,048                     28,130                   (22,082)                  10,960                   (4,912)                    

Telephone/Internet 12,208                   13,324                   (1,116)                       114,620                 125,240                 (10,620)                  91,334                   23,286                   

Travel 1,031                     3,960                     (2,929)                       20,055                   39,596                   (19,541)                  39,761                   (19,706)                  

Utilities 4,017                     3,916                     101                            43,972                   39,170                   4,802                     37,809                   6,164                     

Loss on Disposal of Assets -                         -                         -                             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Other Operating Expenses 143,266                 175,152                 (31,886)                     1,389,568              1,738,571              (349,003)                1,327,735              61,834                   

Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 56,374                   (33,004)                  89,378                       (272,899)                (379,084)                106,185                 (283,524)                10,625                   

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Donations, Pledges & Contributions 1,431                     37,917                   (36,486)                     57,569                   229,170                 (171,601)                281,418                 (223,850)                

Loan Forgiveness -                         -                         -                             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Capital Grants -                         -                         -                             404,993                 445,912                 (40,919)                  537,707                 (132,713)                

Net Non-operating Surplus (Deficit) 1,431                     37,917                   (36,486)                     462,562                 675,082                 (212,520)                819,125                 (356,563)                

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 57,805                   4,913                     52,892                       189,663                 295,998                 (106,335)                535,601                 (345,938)                
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Oct. 2018 Oct. Budget

Over (Under) 

Budget YTD YTD Budget

Over (Under) 

Budget PY YTD

Cur. v. PY 

YTD

Operating

Medical 65,214$          (59,078)$         124,292$        (170,460)$       (542,383)$       371,923$        (318,636)$       148,176$    

Dental (32,961)           (1,140)             (31,821)           (242,958)         (107,145)         (135,813)         (128,459)         (114,499)$  

Behavioral Health 5,265               5,944              (679)                39,314            39,668            (354)                47,585            (8,271)$       

Optometry 3,728               5,989              (2,261)             (1,831)             54,590            (56,421)           10,777            (12,608)$     

Pharmacy 7,547               9,167              (1,620)             109,127          91,667            17,460            95,807            13,320$      

Community (21,199)           (6,882)             (14,317)           (23,951)           (31,893)           7,942              (13,762)           (10,189)$     

Fundraising (5,539)             (6,033)             494                  (57,461)           (57,697)           236                  (63,741)           6,281$        

Admin. & OH 34,320            19,029            15,291            75,321            174,109          (98,788)           86,905            (11,584)$     

Net Operating Results 56,374$          (33,004)$         89,378$          (272,899)$       (379,084)$       106,185$        (283,524)$       10,625$      

Non Operating

Donations 1,431$            37,917$          (36,486)$         57,569$          229,170$        (171,601)$       281,418$        (223,850)$  

Capital Project Revenue -                   -                   -                   404,993          445,912          (40,919)           537,707          (132,713)$  

Total 1,431$            37,917$          (36,486)$         462,562$        675,082$        (212,520)$       819,125$        (356,563)$  

Net 57,805$          4,913$            52,892$          189,663$        295,998$        (106,335)$       535,601$        (345,938)$  

Hilltown CHC

Summary of Net Results By Dept.

Oct. 2018

Net Results Gain (Deficit)
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Hilltown Community Health Centers

Balance Sheet - Monthly Trend

12/31/2017 3/31/2018 6/30/2018 9/30/2018 10/31/2018
Assets

     Current Assets

               Cash - Operating Fund 139,487$           193,864$           59,713              11,682              335,048            

               Cash - Restricted (Amherst Donations) 238,749             108,789             25,978              25,048              22,147              

               Patient Receivables 922,130             892,811             1,008,550         1,132,355         1,183,720         

               Less Allow. for Doubtful Accounts (99,215)              (135,875)            (136,698)           (164,027)           (179,038)           

               Less Allow. for Contractual Allowances (364,280)            (355,637)            (400,599)           (425,743)           (401,208)           

               A/R 340B-Pharmacist 17,254               16,255               18,243              29,082              11,740              

               A/R 340B-State 928                    (765)                   (4,299)               (4,736)               (4,736)               

               Contracts & Grants Receivable 167,729             56,863               66,864              92,099              64,430              

               Prepaid Expenses 4,882                 21,493               20,263              22,470              23,795              

               A/R Pledges Receivable 56,527               37,121               28,991              28,911              27,911              

     Total Current Assets 1,084,189          834,920             687,006            747,140            1,083,809         

     Property & Equipment

               Land 204,506             204,506             204,506            204,506            204,506            

               Buildings 2,613,913          2,613,913          2,613,913         2,613,913         2,613,913         

               Improvements 872,646             872,646             905,848            905,848            905,848            

               Equipment 964,232             964,232             964,232            964,232            964,232            

               Construction in Progress (Amherst) 1,382,662          1,857,729          2,012,678         2,125,022         2,125,022         

          Total Property and Equipment 6,037,958          6,513,025          6,701,176         6,813,520         6,813,520         

               Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,185,507)         (2,220,682)         (2,255,859)        (2,322,241)        (2,344,368)        

     Net Property & Equipment 3,852,452          4,292,343          4,445,317         4,491,279         4,469,152         

     Other Assets

               Restricted Cash 53,713               53,717               53,732              53,731              53,741              

               Pharmacy 340B and Optometry Inventory 13,089               13,224               13,544              14,344              14,705              

               Investments Restricted 6,978                 6,978                 7,350                7,789                7,789                

               Investment - Vanguard 514,406             464,406             467,823            377,622            345,768            

     Total Other Assets 588,186             538,326             542,450            453,486            422,003            

Total Assets 5,524,827$        5,665,589$        5,674,773         5,691,906         5,974,964         

Liabilities & Fund Balance

     Current & Long Term Liabilities

          Current Liabilities

               Accounts Payable 296,786$           508,923$           359,533            335,288            175,022            

               Notes Payable -                     -                     -                    -                    300,000            

               Sales Tax Payable 51                      315                    59                     35                     25                     

               Accrued Expenses 80,324               (3,108)                (6,046)               6,846                14,046              

               Accrued Payroll Expenses 368,564             504,005             397,811            478,758            575,641            

               Payroll Liabilities 19,499               8,674                 12,214              15,276              16,015              

               Unemployment Escrow 826                    826                    826                   826                   826                   

               Line of Credit -                     -                     -                    50,000              -                    

               Deferred Contract Revenue 107,507             48,531               56,783              43,843              77,074              

          Total Current Liabilities 873,556             1,068,166          821,179            930,872            1,158,648         

          Long Term Liabilities

               Mortgage Payable United Bank 185,129             180,782             176,531            172,239            170,792            

               Mortgages Payable USDA Huntington 189,368             186,406             183,323            180,164            179,088            

          Total Long Term Liabilities 374,497             367,188             359,854            352,403            349,879            

     Total Liabilities 1,248,053          1,435,354          1,181,033         1,283,274         1,508,528         

          Fund Balance / Equity

               Fund Balance Prior Years 4,276,773          4,230,235          4,493,740         4,408,632         4,466,436         

          Total Fund Balance / Equity 4,276,773          4,230,235          4,493,740         4,408,632         4,466,436         

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 5,524,827$        5,665,589$        5,674,773$       5,691,906$       5,974,964$       
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QI Risk Management Committee 
Location: Huntington Health Center 
Date/Time: 9/18/2018 9:15 am 
 
Team members present: Kathryn Jensen (chair), Board Representative; 
Serena Torrey, Behavioral Health Representative; Jon Liebman, ANP; Cynthia 
McGrath, Practice Manager; Carolyn Sailer, Lead QI Coordinator; Michael Purdy, 
CCCSO; Marylou Stuart, Dental Representative; Dawn Flatt, Director of Clinical 
Operations 

Absent: Eliza Lake, CEO; Kim Savery, Community Programs Representative; Sheri 
Cheung, Medicine Representative; Seth Gemme, Board Representative 

 
 
 

Agenda Item Summary of Discussion Decision/ 
Next Steps/ 

Person 
Responsible/ 

Due Date 
Review of 

August 21, 2018 
Minutes 

The meeting was called to order by Kathryn Jensen at 
9:18am.  
 
The minutes for the August 21, 2018 meeting were reviewed 
by the group.  
 
The minutes were amended to reflect that we are able to 
satisfy the NCQA requirement of sharing information with the 
public by posting our results regarding smoking cessation on 
our website alone.  
 
Jon Liebman made a motion to approve the amended 
minutes; Cynthia McGrath seconded the motion. The 
amended August 21, 2018 minutes were unanimously 
approved.  
 

August 21, 2018 
minutes were 
approved 



Risk 
Management 

Michael Purdy reported for risk management.  
 
There is one new incident and it is currently being 
investigated. A patient fell in the waiting room of the 
Huntington Health Center when their knee gave out. The 
patient was not injured. Michael is gathering additional 
information and will have a report for the next meeting.  
 
Carolyn Sailer provided additional follow up related to a past 
incident where a patient’s report was received from the 
hospital and it remained unopened in a provider’s mailbox for 
several days. The review of the mail process showed that the 
front desk staff opens all clinical mail. Although we do not 
know why the piece of mail in the incident was not opened, it 
is department practice to open all clinical mail.  
 

Michael Purdy 
will report results 
of completed 
investigation at a 
future meeting 

Peer Review/ 
Department 
Reports 
 
Medical 
Department 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Behavioral 
Health 
Department 

Jon Liebman reported for the Medical Department. He 
reviewed our progress toward the goals for UDS measures. In 
some cases, the pre-visit planning process that will be piloted 
shortly should help capture some of the work providers are 
doing which will improve our performance against the 
measures.  
 
Jon is considering different ways to improve the chart review 
process so that it identifies the real problems. Sheri Cheung 
will be catching up on the backlog of reviews within the next 
few weeks.  
 
Jon is also reviewing and reconsidering privileging. Some 
providers are more expert in particular procedures. We need 
to consider our volume of patients for particular procedures 
as we decide how many providers to privilege to conduct 
them.     
 
There are no legal issues at this time.  
 
Serena Torrey reported for the Behavioral Health 
Department. We have not yet come to the end of Q3, so 
those numbers are not yet available.  
 
Behavioral Health is in the final stages of the hire of a 20 
hour/week bilingual (Spanish/English) therapist. They will be 
starting at the School-Based and Huntington Health Centers 
and will become a full-time employee, adding hours at the 
John P. Musante Health Center.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Over the summer, the department provided same-day 
appointments that could be put directly into clinician 
schedules. This helped to address the 100 patient waitlist. 
There was some confusion with insurance approvals and 
paperwork. That has been straightened out with additional 
information and a staffing change so they are on their way to 
improvement.  There are now 5-10 people on the waitlist.  
 
Now, every new referral is scheduled by the front desk with a 
same-week appointment for an assessment. After the 
assessment, the patient is referred for treatment, put on the 
waitlist, or referred elsewhere. The waitlist is expected to 
grow as clinician’s schedules fill.  
 
Cynthia offered to have the front desk staff call clients who 
no-show for appointments but in order to minimize 
confusion, it would need to be implemented for the entire 
department.  Serena will confer with her team and will follow 
up with Cynthia with a decision on this.  
 
Serena noted that there are no legal issues or complaints to 
review at this time.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Patient 
Communication 

Eliza was not present at the meeting so this topic will be 
addressed at the next meeting 

Patient surveys 
to be addressed 
by Eliza at the 
next meeting 

Other business On the topic of breast cancer incidence, Carolyn reported 
that we will have some of the data that Jon is requesting in 
order to evaluate mammograms and breast cancer incidence 
at our health centers. It will entail detailed chart reviews to 
determine which patients had new breast cancer diagnoses 
that were initially identified by mammography. When the 
chart reviews are complete, Carolyn will forward the 
information to Jon.  
 
Though Kim was not present at the meeting, she conveyed to 
Kathryn that there were no updates for Community 
Programs.  
 

 

New business No new business  
Adjourn The meeting adjourned at 9:55 am. The next meeting is 

scheduled for Tuesday, October 16, 2018 at 9:15 am at the 
Huntington Health Center. 

 



 
QI COMMITTEE      
Location:  Huntington Health Center 
Date/Time: 10/18/2016 9:15am 
 
TEAM MEMBERS: Kathryn Jensen, BOD; Seth Gemme, BOD; Eliza Lake, CEO; Kim Savery, Community Program 
Representative; Dawn Flatt, Director of Clinical Operations 
ABSENT:  Serena Torrey, Behavioral Health Director; Mary Lou Stuart, Dental Director; Jon Liebman, Medical 
Director; Sheri Cheung, MD; Michael Purdy, CCCSO and Risk Manager; Cynthia Magrath, Practice Manager  
 
 
 

Agenda Item Summary of Discussion Decision/Next 
Steps 

Person 
Responsible/ 

Due Date 
Review of July Minutes The minutes from the September 

18, 2018 meeting were reviewed. 
With no discussion needed, Eliza 
Lake made a motion to approve 
the minutes as written. Kim 
Savery seconded the motion.  

The September 
18, 2018 
minutes were 
approved 
unanimously. 

 

Risk Management Dawn Flatt reported on a recent 
patient incident – the patient fell 
in the waiting room for the 
second time, but was not injured.  
She has been experiencing 
frequent falls in the home and 
elsewhere as her pain medication 
is decreased, and is getting 
appropriate orthopedic care.  The 
group discussed the best way to 
prevent her falling in the clinic, 
and discussed a few possible 
solutions – having her sit in a 
wheelchair as soon as she is 
checked in and/or making sure 
that she is roomed by the MA and 
sitting in a chair immediately.  
The group also discussed the 
development of a waiver that the 
patient could sign to protect 
HCHC if she falls again.  The 
CHWs are all trained in the 
Matter of Balance program, and 
the group agreed that patients 
with a history of falling should be 
referred to a CHW. 

  

Department Reports There was no quarterly report   

 1 



from the Dental dept this month 
due to the absence of Mary Lou 
at this meeting.  Dawn did report 
that a patient was hospitalized 
after an extraction, but she had 
been told to take antibiotics prior 
to the procedure and had refused 
– this was not considered a risk 
for the organization.  She has had 
two dental visits since her 
admission. 
 
Kim reported that the loss of 
Carolyn Sailer due to the 
elimination of her position due to 
the end of her grant funding will 
affect data collection and analysis 
efforts.  She is in the process of 
hiring a new health access 
worker, which is a real need.  
Also, Community Programs, due 
to new grant funding from the 
Mass Office of Victim Assistance,  
is dramatically expanding its 
Domestic Violence Victim 
Advocacy program, and is hiring a 
new supervisor and child witness 
advocate.  The CHWs have been 
moved downstairs at the 
Community Center, creating 
easier access for clients, and 
creating office space for the first 
time for the DV program staff. 
 

 
 

 

Breast Cancer Incidence Data The group agreed that since the 
NFL grant has concluded, this 
report will become part of the 
Medical Department Report 

  

Patient Satisfaction Survey Results The patient satisfaction survey 
was completed and the results 
were generally very positive. The 
ratings for the medical providers, 
the amount of time and focus 
they bring to the visit, how they 
explain things, were all very 
positive.  
 
There is a definite difference 

  

 2 



between the Worthington and 
Huntington responses, which is 
the area to look at more 
carefully, but the sample size is 
smaller for Worthington. The 
issues identified also may be 
related to the changes in provider 
availability at that site.  The 
surveys for the other 
departments have very small 
survey numbers (these are just 
those that responded by email - 
there should be paper surveys as 
well, which need to be entered by 
hand). But the medical responses 
are almost 10% of those sent the 
survey by email, which is a decent 
response rate.  As Janet Laroche 
was the person who processed 
the surveys, and her position has 
not yet been refilled, the exercise 
of comparing the data to the 
national results has not yet 
happened, but will give the 
Committee a better sense of 
what responses are outside of 
normal ranges. 
 

HEI Certification/LGBTQ/Diversity 
Committee 

The application for certification 
under the Health Equality is due 
10/19/18, and has pushed the 
organization to examine its 
patient services, policies and 
procedures, employee benefits, 
and more, to determine if we are 
truly LGBTQ competent and 
friendly.  In general, there were 
no major changes required to be 
able to score fairly well.  One 
requirement was the creation of 
a specific committee to 
implement and track issues 
related to these practices, and 
the group that was formed 
agreed to focus on this issue 
initially, and then broaden the 
focus to other issues of diversity 
and inclusion.  There is a 
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possibility that issues raised by 
this group could be brought 
before the QI/RM Committee in 
the future.  

Technical Assistance HRSA has offered us free 
technical assistance at the end of 
October related specifically to our 
efforts to improve our diabetes 
measures.  This will be an 
opportunity for Committee 
members to learn more about 
federal expectations and how we 
can improve our services.  A 
number of members expressed 
interest in participating. 

  

Reporting Schedule The group agreed to move the 
Eye Care Report schedule to be 
on the same month as Dental, 
and therefore Community 
Programs, Dental, and Eye Care 
will all report at the November 
meeting. 

  

Adjourn Eliza Lake moved to adjourn the 
meeting and Kim Savery 
seconded the motion. The 
meeting adjourned at 10:00 am. 
The next meeting is November 
20, 2018 at 9:15am at the 
Huntington Health Center. 
 

  

 
Submitted by Eliza Lake, CEO 
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Strategic Planning Committee 
HCHC 
10/2/2018  
 
Attending:  Alan Gaitenby, John Follet, Eliza Lake, Frank Mertes, Nancy Brenner 
 
The committee reviewed the Goals of the Strategic Plan written a year ago, along 
with the Action Plan.  Progress and areas needing continued work were discussed. 
 
Regarding expansion, the growth of urgent care sites and pharmacies joining with 
insurance companies are two obvious changes in the health care environment 
which may be impacting our ability to serve the community.  Whether the HCHC 
should offer walk-in hours daily was considered. 
 
We now have video carts which will enable teleconferencing, possibly with psy-
chiatrists and other specialists. Details will need to be explored, with C3, including 
what would be reimbursed to the HCHC and what to the clinician? 
 
Also discussed were opioid services, which appear to be available elsewhere, and 
the need for pharmacy services for health safety net patients in Amherst. 
 
Expansion to Westfield is a continuing area of exploration.  Portable dental ser-
vices at Hampshire Regional will also be explored. 
 
Focus has been brought to the LGBTQ population, with staff training opportuni-
ties.  Are there other populations, i.e. immigrants, on which we should focus? 
 
IT is staying at CDH, and has not yet been coordinated with C3.  We have bought 
new laptops and video equipment with grants. 
 
Senior management team will update their Action Plan and present to this commit-
tee at a followup meeting next month. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Nancy Brenner 
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